HUDSON, NH BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Minutes of the July 26, 2022 Meeting

- <u>CALL TO ORDER</u> by Chairperson Roy the meeting of July 26, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. in the Selectmen Meeting Room at Town Hall
- 2. <u>PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE</u> led by Kate Messner, Sustainability Committee member
- ATTENDANCE

Board of Selectmen: Bob Guessferd, Marilyn McGrath, Dave Morin, Kara Roy

Selectman Gagnon participated remotely.

<u>Staff/Others</u>: Jerry Bento, RTK Committee; Jim Michaud, Chief Assessor; Craig Putnam, Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee; Diane Cannava, Cable Committee; Elvis Dhima, Town Engineer; Bill Collins, Conservation Committee Chairman; Rob Buxton, Fire Chief; Gary Gasdia School Board Representative; Jill Laffin, Executive Assistant

Town Administrator, Steve Malizia had an excused absence for this meeting.

- 4. PUBLIC INPUT there was none
- 5. RECOGNITIONS, NOMINATIONS & APPOINTMENTS
 - A. Resignations

Right to Know Committee
Town Staff Member - Joe Tessier
Town Resident Member - Flo Nicolas

Chairperson Roy explained, we have two resignations from the Right to Know Committee. Town Staff Member, Joe Tessier, and Town Resident Member, Flo Nicolas.

<u>Selectman McGrath made a motion, seconded by Selectman Gagnon to accept the resignation of Joe</u> <u>Tessier from the Right to Know Committee with the Board's thanks and appreciation. A roll call vote</u> <u>was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to accept the resignation of Flo Nicolas from the Right to Know Committee with the Board's thanks and appreciation. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

B. Nomination

Right to Know Committee

Town Staff Member - Lt. Steven McElhinney

<u>Selectman McGrath made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to appoint Lt. Steven McElhinney as the Town Staff Member of the Right to Know Committee. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>
Selectman McGrath then said_and I'd like to make a comment because I think that he's an excellent choice because he served on the CALEA committee and did a wonderful job with that.

Chairperson Roy then said, just so you know going forward, because we have somebody attending remotely all of our votes have to be by roll call. So we will continue that.

6. CONSENT ITEMS

The Chairperson asked, does anyone have anything they'd like removed for separate consideration? Selectman McGrath asked to remove Consent Items 6A-3 and 6C-2. <u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to approve Consent Items A1, 2, 4, B, C1, D, E and F. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

Chairperson Roy then recognized Selectman McGrath who said the person Harriet Sevigny of 2 Fairway Drive. And the reason for that is that, as some of you know, or maybe all of you know, I use Nashua Transit to take me to appointments over in Nashua. And she happened to be on a couple of the trips that I made on that. And she talked about, because we live in the same area of town, she'd talk about the vote on the golf course property. And I never talked to her about it, but I feel the need to at least mention it. And if anybody has an objection to me voting on her request, I'll gladly step down. Selectman Morin said, No objection. Selectman Guessferd said I have no objection. Selectman Gagnon was asked and he did not have an objection either.

Chairperson Roy said do we want to do both of them now or do you? Selectman McGrath said I'll do the other one. So the other one is. 6C-2 for Mr... I don't even know what the name is. Tougjas? Chairperson Roy replied, I guess I'll take that. Selectman McGrath then said so I don't know this person, but I'm questioning the, the proposed location of sales. He's going to go door to door knocking on doors. And I don't know that that's appropriate. And like I said, I don't know this person. I don't know if he's going all over town or just in one area. But that concerns me. So I won't I won't vote in favor of it if a motion is made to approve it. But that's my reasoning.

Selectman McGrath said, do you want to see my copy Mr. Guessferd. Selectman Guessferd replied, No, I've got it. It's just there's a couple of pieces on this. I'm just trying to figure out if there was any more detail than there is. There's really not. It just says educational products. Do we know anything more about this? Chairperson Roy said he put a Southwestern Advantage edition here to reference. Executive Assistant, Jill Laffin then said, the individual does have a valid Hawker Peddler license from the State. Selectman Guessferd said I see it was approved by the Police Department as well. So. Selectman McGrath said I just have a concern about knocking on doors, knocking you know, going to people's doors, disturbing them at home and as opposed to having a location where they can at least inform the neighborhood, maybe that they're going to be having those sales and have them come to him if they're interested. I just... They used to do that a long time ago, knock on doors. And I it was never a good thing.

Selectman Guessferd said I haven't seen a lot of it recently. Chairperson Roy said neither have I. But yeah, you used to see it a lot more. Does anybody else have anything? Mr. Gannon, do you have anything? Selectman Gagnon replied, No, ma'am, I do not. Chairperson Roy asked, does anybody want to make a motion?

Chairperson Roy asked, does anybody else have any comment or questions? Does anybody want to make a motion to?

<u>Selectman McGrath made a motion to deny consent item 6C-2, Hawker Peddler License for Johan Tougjas. Motion failed for lack of a second.</u>

<u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to approve consent item 6C-2, Hawker Peddler License. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 4-1. Selectman McGrath opposed.</u>

Seeing no further questions <u>Selectman Morin made a motion</u>, <u>seconded by Selectman Guessferd to accept consent item 6A-3</u>, <u>Elderly Exemption Re-qualifications</u>. <u>A roll call vote was taken</u>. <u>Carried 4-1</u>. <u>Selectman McGrath opposed</u>.

A. <u>Assessing Items</u>

- 1) 2022 Elderly Exemption Application Requalification: Map 178, Lot 13-100, 22 Mobile Drive
- 2) 2022 Elderly Exemption Application Late Filing: Map 174, Lot 26, 4 Cummings Street
- 3) <u>Elderly Exemption Re-qualifications</u>: Map 160, Lot 097, Sub 002, 44B Windham Road; Map 246, Lot 030, 2 Fairway Drive; Map 191, Lot 134, 5 Bay Street; Map 152, Lot 032, 29 Copeland Drive
- 4) <u>Current Use Lien Releases:</u> Map 187, Lot 10-18, 249 Standish Lane; Map 187, Lot 10-19, 245 Standish Lane; Map 187, Lot 10-20, 241 Standish Lane; Map 187, Lot 10-21, 237 Standish Lane; Map 187, Lot 10-22, 233 Standish Lane; Map 187, Lot 10-23, 227 Standish Lane
- B. Water/Sewer Items none
- C. Licenses & Permits & Policies
 - 1) Raffle Permit Hudson Police Relief Association
 - 2) Hawker Peddler License -Johan Tougjas
- D. <u>Donations</u> none
- E. Acceptance of Minutes
 - 1) Minutes of July 12, 2022

F.	Calendar	
	7/27	7.0

7/27	7:00	Planning Board - Buxton Meeting Room
7/28	3:00	Trustees of the Trust Funds - Buxton Meeting Room
7/28	7:00	Zoning Board of Adjustment - Buxton Meeting Room
8/2	6:30	Board of Selectmen Workshop - Hills Memorial Library
8/3	8:30	Highway Safety Committee - Buxton Meeting Room
8/3	7:00	Budget Committee - Buxton Meeting Room
8/8	-	Conservation Commission - CANCELLED
8/8	7:00	Cable Utility Committee - HCTV Meeting Room
8/9	7:00	Board of Selectmen - BOS Meeting Room

7. OLD BUSINESS

A. Right to Know Policy - Second Draft/Update

Chairperson Roy recognized Jerry Bento of the Right to Know Committee. Mr. Bento began by saying Good evening, everyone. With me is John Dubuc, also a member of the team. First, I'd like to start off by saying extending a big thank you to attorney, now Judge Joe Tessier and Flo Nicolas for all the work that they did on this committee. Without their invaluable input, this draft policy would not be in the state it is today. Big thank you for them. A big loss to the committee with both of them. We'd also like to welcome Lieutenant McElhinney to the committee, look forward

to working with him as we continue work on the final document, which is due to the Board of Selectmen at the end of September.

Mr. Bento went on to say and soliciting members for the committee. If anyone knows someone interested in the committee, if they could come to the next meeting, which is going to be the beginning of August. We're firming up a date right now. We'd like to meet with them and have members of the public join our committee. Selectman McGrath asked, how many members? Just the one. Mr. Bento replied, just the one that's appointed by the committee. The four committee members nominate that person and bring it to the Board for the appointment. Selectman McGrath replied, okay thank you. Mr. Bento then said as many people as possible that are interested.

Mr. Bento then said as we look at the draft policy that you have in front of you. Its 16 pages, I believe made a lot of progress since the first draft at the end of May. Two particular, one particular section that I'd like to bring to your attention is Section 2.0 obtaining public information. A lot of work was done on the sections regarding requesting, gathering and organizing, completing a request and applicable costs. I consider this section crucial to the day to day operation of the policy. One item that we will be adding to the policy that's not in there today is the update to RSA 91:A related to the New Hampshire's new ombudsman that will hear right to know complaints. That's a new addition I was just notified of a couple days ago. Selectman McGrath asked, where is that added? Mr. Bento replied, it is not added. We will be adding it. Selectman McGrath replied, oh, it's not added. Mr. Bento said the final revision will have that in there. Selectman McGrath replied, thank you. Mr. Bento then said I just received that a couple of days ago and we haven't had an opportunity to go through it and put it and make sure that it's indicated in there so the public knows the appeal processes that are available to them.

Mr. Bento then said it's a wordy document and you folks have a lot on your plate, but we will entertain questions at this time, if you have any for us. And we'll also look forward to any questions that you think of tomorrow when you get home, which happens to all of us. There's three ways that I see that you can submit questions. One, you can go directly to Selectman Gagnon, who's on the committee. You can send it to myself. I'm the only Bento in the Town of Hudson email directory. John Dubuc, who's the only Dubuc in the Town of Hudson email directory. Or we have a group Right to Know in the Town of Hudson email directory that will hit every single member. Tomorrow we'll get Lieutenant McElhinney added to that directory. So that's the ways to get to us, get questions to us, and we look forward to the questions. We need to have a good, strong document going forward. And input is critical to that. So are there any questions today?

Selectman Guessferd said I don't have any questions per se. But I do want to echo, I guess, what you said when you brought forth the first draft. It was a document that was kind of written by different people and it was kind of disjointed. This is it's exponentially better. I mean, it's organized well. You have your up-front information and then chronologically the things that have to be done. And it's I'm very impressed with the progress that you have made in the last month or two since the first draft. So I looked through it. I want to look through it in more detail. Obviously, I don't have any specific questions at this point, except I do have one comment at the top of every page in your header. It says denial template. I think that's probably needs to come out. Chairperson Roy said yeah, it looks like it's a footnote that we just stuck on. Selectman Guessferd said that was my only initial comment. So. Mr. Bento replied and it's a team effort to get to that point where. But thank you.

Chairperson Roy asked Selectman McGrath, do you have any questions? To which Selectman McGrath replied, I'm going to read the final document because this is its too wordy. And, you know, there's no point in me reading it and then finding out that they've made changes to it. So I'd rather just read the final document. And if I have questions or comments, I'll certainly share them with you.

Chairperson Roy asked Selectman Gagnon, do you have any questions or comments? Selectman Gagnon replied, not too many questions this time. I'd like to thank the committee, those leaving the committee and those joining the committee. I think we've been working very well together. We've, as its' been stated, come a long way. I feel pretty proud of what's what's in the document. It tries to hit

on a lot of key points that we have seen as being issues in the past. And we're also trying to include some amendments or some attachments to this document, which will include applications for town hall right to know requests. Eventually the police right to know requests. So this really will be an all-encompassing document. And I'm really proud of the team. I think we're we're really taking strides. We're keeping to the time frame, which has been tight but possible. So I'm really think we'll have something quite good, maybe even more documents in the state that other towns could potentially utilize once this group is completed their work. So thank you to all of the people involved.

Chairperson Roy said I just want to echo you guys have done a great job in putting this together. I actually do have a question. I've been trying to form my head, so I'll probably email it to you so that you understand what I'm trying to ask you. But yeah, you guys have done a great job. And I know both Judge Tessier and Miss Nicolas will be will be sorely missed on the committee. They were great assets. And I'm sure Lieutenant McElhinney will fill in quite nicely. If nobody has anything else. Thank you very much.

8. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

A. 2022 Property Revaluation

Chairperson Roy recognized Chief Assessor, Jim Michaud. Mr. Michaud began by introducing Mike Torello, vice president of appraisal operations for VGSI which is Vision Governmental Solutions, Incorporated, which we just call Vision. He's the primary appraisers responsible for the reevaluation this year, along with other staff members.

The Board has a copy of my memo as well as a copy of information that Mike is going to speak to. This is our first reassessment since 2017. We know that the real estate market has been quite active, especially so over the last three years. We're doing it in 2022, as we are required to do it once every five years by constitutional law and statutory law. So we had no choice to wait till the sixth year because we had to do it within five. So we're like a number of other communities in the state, communities that went through reassessments in 2020 that saw steep increases in values, assessed values, communities that went through the process in '21, that saw steep increases. And here we are in 2022. Like other communities that are going through it this year, we're looking at steep increases in assessed value. We're required to meet full and true market value for as of April 1st. That is our assessment date. It's not July 26th. It's April 1st. So beyond that, this is the eighth reassessment that the town has gone through since 1968. It is the fifth that I've been involved in. So my staff has been through this before. Administrative Aide Amy McMullen has been through at least four of them here, and then Mike Rotast has been through a number of reassessments in other communities and reevaluation companies that he worked with. With that I'll introduce Mike Torello. Thank you.

Mr. Torello said thank you. I've presented a document for you to review, but I'm just going to go through it quickly and just hit on some of the major points in the process that we did and then some of the results and some of the statistics from the sales and what they indicated.

So we did complete a preliminary evaluation of all the properties, excluding the utilities, which would be done by another firm. We did a complete review and analysis of all the properties, and this included updating construction costs, land values and income rates for the commercial properties. So we've qualified all the sales that we looked at and we've developed a new land curve. This is the curve that we set for the community, for the residential. We set one for the commercial and the residential. And then what we do is that's for the average type property. Then we make adjustments for neighborhoods and site and so forth, positive or negative. So the increase for the land indicated over the five year period about a 50% increase. So that was about 10% a year. And then there's also that's for the primary land that supports the building and the sites. And then if there's any excess land that has a much lower price on it at \$6,000, the new primary price for an acre is \$170,000. It was approximately \$110,000 or \$115,000 last time. Once we've accomplished setting the land and the

neighborhood adjustments and the site adjustments, we've then gone on to look at the buildings. We've set up what are considered base cost rates. Again, they're based on an average construction and of average property, and those have gone up about 45% from around \$95 to \$100 a square foot to \$145. We used local construction costs, Marshall and Swift, which is a manual type rate system. So combining all those factors and then looking at characteristics like building size, age, quality of construction, all the components, we get new market values at 100%.

Mr. Torello went on to say we've tested all this to the sales that have occurred since 4/12021. We've tested them right up to 7/15. So it could be up to date with close sales right past the date and right before the date of valuation of 4/1 as the State will review these sales all the way through 10/1 when they do the equalization. So below the lower part of the document I have the old two new and indicate single family properties have gone up on average 60% over the five year period. The residential condos 45%. Two families, 60%. Three families, 58%. Apartments, 55%. Vacant land, 50%. Commercial, about 16%. Industrial 20%. Mixed use 30%. And the manufacturing homes have gone up quite a bit at 80%. But you have to realize that they were at about \$30,000 or \$40,000 and now they're at about \$70,000. So percentage wise it was a big increase. But they're smaller costs, obviously.

On the residential styles, the typical styles, the split levels, which we do not have a lot of, but they went up the most at 68%. Colonial 62%. Raised Ranch 62%. Modern Contemporary 61%. Cape 60%. New Englanders 56% and Bungalows 54%. So basically in that 60 range. Mr. Torello went on to say so the next page I have combined sales with a single families, the condos. The condexes that we use. The mobile homes, two families, vacant land. So we had about 474 sales during that time period and we're now at 100% of value. Now we rate the consistency of the data based on two elements. One is called the coefficient of dispersion. All that is is like the bell curve you had in school. If the numbers low, everything's tight and there's good equity, the number should be between five and 15%. Right now we're at 7.67%. So that's a good low number. And then the other thing that we look at is the price related differential, and that's very simple. Comparing high price properties to low price properties, make sure they're equitable also. So this number is at 99.6. If you're at 100, you're equitable. If you're at a lower number, 98 or 103 past there, then there could be some inequities with the lower and higher price properties. So these are the standards that we look at when we set the values. And we've come within all of the IAAO, which is the Assessors Association standards to meet for this required revaluation.

The only other item I put in here was a little bit more detail on the types of residential properties. So you could just see some of them don't have a lot of sales, but a lot of them do like the ranches, 99% colonials, 102%. Capes, 99%. And you get to condo/townhouses, 96%. Ranches. What we need to do with these subgroups is to be within 90 to 110% within these, they're all within about 5% of the range of the 100. So again, these are all the requirements of just keeping everything consistent and making sure that we have all the different types of properties and the sizes, the age, everything consistent with the requirements of the State Department of Revenue.

The last thing I want to show you is the sales date quartiles. So this shows the trend in property values that are still increasing. So basically from 2021 second quarter, we had a ratio of 102. So what this means is that as the ratio goes down, the assessments stay the same, so the sale prices go up. So you can see that there's still a pattern of increasing value in the community through each quarter. So the end of the first quarter or the end of the quarter four 2021, we're at 101. 2022 we're at 97 and then sales that have occurred past the valuation date were at 91. So you're still seeing that this is somewhat of an increase. We were required to be at 100% for 4/1/2022. And so we're right in that range with those two quarters of 101 and 97.

Mr. Torello went on to say, so what this tells us is that sales are still going up to the point of around July. However, as you're aware of when deals are made, it takes 60 to 90 days to close. So those are really indicators of property sales. You haven't seen that maybe with the increase in the interest rates and slow down a little bit that the next few months will monitor and that might start to level off a little bit. We're starting to see more properties for sale and less bidding wars that we saw before. So we

think that the plan, hopefully that the sales level off and when they do the equalization study, it may be a couple of percent lower, but we'll still be in a pretty good place.

So we plan to finalize the values. Now they are complete. So the assessor's office and myself have now been going through the old two new reports, checking quality errors and so forth, making sure everything looks good. And we should be wrapping that up in the next day or two and we'll probably be mailing out on Friday and they'll probably hit next Tuesday and then we'll start setting up. We went and looked at the library today, for doing hearings. We're also going to do them by phone. So whatever's comfortable for people at the library, we'll have the glass shields and so forth for protection and masks, hand sanitizer. If people more comfortable with doing it by phone, they have the opportunity to do that. We also allow people to mail information in or email information into us, and we'll review that, consider that as a hearing also. So those will run probably starting in about a week. Getting time for people to make the calls. We'll start around the eighth and then wrap up around the 22nd. So a little over two weeks, we'll be doing hearings. We'll make sure everyone gets a hearing. If we have to go another day or two after that. We'll do that. We'll make sure that it's there.

So basically in 2017, the average sale price was about \$260,000. Now it's about \$415,000. And that's really over the five year period. As Jim had said, the last 17 going into 18 and 19, the increases weren't as strong. It's the last three years it's been almost like 12% to 14% a year. And I just did seven of these last year. And a lot of your brother and sister communities, Manchester, Bedford, Amherst, many of them, and they were all in that 50%, 55% increase also. And again, the commercials that just don't go up as fast, they were in the 15 to 30 range, just like you are. So these numbers are very consistent to the other communities that we did last year. Last year for the visits, we had about five or 6% of the population come in to do hearings. Chairperson Roy asked, so would you anticipate the same? I guess that would be a better question for Jim.

Chief Assessor Jim Michaud replied, to dissipate the same percentage turnout for informal hearings? I would expect that. I would also point to his history is very immediate. Right. He did a bunch last year and our similar socioeconomic area. I would expect it to be similar. I like the fact that they're doing some telephonic hearings both for people's time, as well as their concern over being in person. So that's an added element that's been special for a lot of communities. We definitely I included some copies of pages that indicate what happens to the tax rate after reevaluation. Tax base goes up, tax rate goes down. Consistently over the course of the last eight re-evaluations we went through, except for one year where we did it after the Great Recession. Tax base goes down. Tax rate goes up. So it's math. And we also included some area communities that went through the reassessments last year, what their 2020 tax rates were. What their '21 tax rates are. Down a lot. I wish I could tell everybody what the tax rate is going to be. I can't Steve Malizia can't, Lisa Labrie can't. The State of New Hampshire can't until they get all the data elements in October of this year, October, November. I don't expect for us to get our revised rate until that time frame later, October, early November.

Mr. Michaud continued on to say, there is a component of this that Mike spoke to public utility valuation and telecommunications, cell towers and the like. So that's George E. Sansoucy, PE LLC. They're responsible for those values there to get them to us by August 15th by contract. They have all the data elements that they need and they will handle their own hearings. They will handle their own mailings of new value. They typically do most all of their hearings telephonically with the various public utility companies and the cell tower companies.

You know, the last really, really large significant increase that we had of this magnitude was in 2002. And that was our last revaluation where we changed software. But more importantly, in 2002, it had been 11 years since the last reassessment. So we saw really numbers similar to this in that time frame. It doesn't help today. It just means we've been through this kind of significant activity before. We're next required to do a reassessment within five years of this year, 2027. The Board of Selectmen, the Budget Committee and the voters have approved funding our capital reserve account for property revaluation. We would have enough money in there, I would expect, by 2024 if the real estate market took a, took a turn either way, right down or up to the point where the board would say, boy, we really need to readjust things. Right. Again, that doesn't help today, but it may answer some

people's questions about what if this heated market takes a dive? What do we do then? Well, the Board of Selectmen would to have that policy decision to make at that point in time. We're not required to do it except once every five years. But if we did do it, say, in two years, we wouldn't be required again until five years from then. So it's kind of a moving five years, right?

Mr. Torello then said there are communities that do it sometimes, maybe two or three. Bedford has been doing it. I think they just felt that they were increasing so fast. If they did it in between it, then the next time they did, it wouldn't be as shocking.

Chairperson Roy said, Selectman McGrath, did you have a question? Selectman McGrath replied, no, I didn't have a question. I had a comment. So doing another reevaluation, if the market tanks, which I anticipate that it's going, to base on what's happening in Washington or what's not happening in Washington that we're going to see property values really take a hit because the prices are going up so quickly. And then I expect that they're going to go down just as quickly and that will have an effect on the tax rate.

The other thing the other comment that I want to make is that I think that we should, if we can push up getting the numbers available to the property owners of what the revaluation is going to do to their property and what the tax, the potential tax rate, or real tax rate is, then they'll have adequate time to prepare for it because I don't think it's... personally, I don't and it doesn't have anything to do with you, I don't think. But pushing up the notification of the effect on their taxes, when we're in, we're in a period of time where everything is going up, all of the costs are going up, groceries are going up. And until there's a change in Washington, that's going to continue and there's a possible again, possible recession. But by some estimates or some commentary that I hear, we're in it now, and that's going to have a real effect on the country and on the properties. And people that have bought high may not be able to get rid of their property, but the value is going to go down. And then whatever loans they've taken out to buy that property, that's going to have an effect on them, too. So I think that we're in such a precarious time and throughout the country that we need to be able to if taxes are going to go up, we need to at least notify the residents that are affected by that as soon as we possibly can.

Chairperson Roy asked, does anybody have anything else? Selectman Gagnon said, I do. Selectman Gagnon then said, Thank you. Gentlemen, I had a question for you. You spoke about an appeal process, a two week window. Forgive me. Unless I missed it, but can you explain how someone does go about appealing on this process and what that appeal looks like? In short?

Mr. Michaud replied, sure. I'll take the first part of that. So we'll be entering what's called the informal hearing process. We sent out a notice of what's called preliminary valuation, and folks will take a look at it. We'll have our information up on our website. We'll have the new database up on our website. We'll also have printouts in our office and at the Rodgers Memorial Library. And folks will see what their neighbors are assessed, that they'll see what they're assessed, that they'll look at discrete data about their property. Finished basement. Central Air fireplace. Do we have the correct information? And then they'll look at the sales that we're going to have. We have sales books. So we're going to identify the properties that have sold. So I own a ranch. I'm going to look at some other ranches and similar neighborhoods. And so they're going to get an idea from that as to whether or not their assessment is reasonably fair or not. For folks that aren't in the real estate market, they may not be familiar with what the properties are selling for in their neighborhood and around the community. And the sales books that we'll have available both online and in person will give light to that and our assessment database.

Beyond the informal hearing process, everybody that comes in for an informal hearing, whether in person or telephonically, they're going to get notified the value changed or if it didn't change, they're going to get notified. After that then we enter into submitting our data to the state of New Hampshire through an MS-1 form, required form, and we report to the state gross valuations, and that leads to the tax rate. Once the tax rate comes out, we send our tax bills, expected in November. Then we enter the property tax abatement process, which is by state law. And folks have until March 1st of the

following year to file an abatement application. And we do expect an elevated amount of abatement applications. In every revaluation year we have them. So that's the first part, which is the informal hearing process with Vision. The second part is the abatement process at the local level, and Vision is under contract to assist us and provide us review function for those local abatement applications as well. Chairperson Roy said can I ask a follow up question? So what would a homeowner have to show if they wanted their valuation changed, for instance? Mr. Michaud replied, So let's say your ranch at \$400,000 and and you've got a 1,500 square foot ranch on a half-acre parcel, and you found other ranches that have sold for \$330,000, \$340,000 within the range of April 1st of this year. You might want to take that kind of sales information, bring it in and say, how does this line up with the value that you presented here? You know, with the volume of data we have, we actually have a lot of sale data. The more sales you have, the better off you are as an appraiser. It gives you a greater degree of confidence in what you were doing, and the numbers reflect that. But to answer your question, assuming your discrete data is correct, we have you down if you finish basement, etc. People are going to use sales to try to show their.... go ahead. Chairperson Roy said so is that one if if there's any data that's not correct, is that the form that you would bring that forward, like the finished basement? You know, you have it as a finished basement and there's no finish base any. Mr. Michaud replied, that's correct. Anything incorrect, we love to fix things. If there's anything that's incorrect, we want to fix them in the informal hearing process. That way we don't end up with an abatement process. Some folks will make it into the informal hearing process with that kind of information. Others we're going to see later in the abatement process. But this is a really valuable part of the process, having the informal hearings and we're paying for it. Right. It's part of the contract and they're going to staff it well. I can't speak highly enough of Linda Pilla for letting us use the Memorial Library, Its air conditioned that's important and it's a beautiful building. And she has a pretty good meeting, really good meeting space set up for us. And we went over there today to do a dry run.

Chairperson Roy asked, Selectman McGrath, did you have a question? Selectman McGrath replied, Yeah, I did. So, Jim, you mentioned having the tax bills out in November. That doesn't always happen. It didn't happen this past year because they didn't get out until well into December and I don't remember the date, but I do know that we had people coming in complaining that they hadn't gotten their tax bill. They didn't know they wanted to do something with it. And that might have been the.....Well, I know that the tax bills were late. I do know that. I think I'm I think I'm. Mr. Michaud said you're correct. Selectman McGrath then said well, I am about that. But I was going to add in the... it was when the absentee ballots were late, that was another issue that people were complaining about. So I was conflating the two. But in my mind.

Mr. Michaud then said, in a in a in a in a non-revaluation year, we typically have our tax rate before November 1 and we try to get the bills out before November 1. In a revaluation year. We tend to get an extension on March one because we want to work through the informal hearing process completely. And so November is the goal, right? We definitely want to have them out certainly before the end of the calendar year. And I don't think that's ever occurred here that we in any recent time that we got it out after the first of the year, it's illegal to do it. But November is my aspirational goal. If I could say October, I would. But November is really where I want to be. If and no later then. And don't forget, we're depending upon many different entities. We could have all our ducks in a row, but if other parts of the total tax rate don't have their forms in necessarily on time or what have you, and we're depending on the Hampshire Department of Education having their numbers into the DRA, the county, there's many different parts that are outside our control. We did everything right. We're waiting for other people.

Selectman McGrath then said, well, I know this. This past year, the DRA was waiting for information and the components in Hudson were the School and the Town needed to get their numbers in. The Town had their numbers, but I think that they were waiting for the School. And so, you know, if one is dragging their feet for whatever the reason is, then the tax bills end up going out late. People are getting ready for the Christmas holidays, Hanukkah, all of the all of the holidays that that are most expensive to them. And then they have to have if it's a new year for tax, a tax rate, then they have to scramble to get that that money in. And it's just, you know, we need to be we need to be more aware of that and the impact that it has on people. And this year in particular, because of the high prices of

food and everything else, we need to. Be really cognizant of that and do the best that we possibly can to get those tax bills in their hands early.

Mr. Michaud responded saying, I agree with you. I don't disagree with you at all. I know we want to get them out accurately. And so you have that twin pressures of accurately and get them out quick. Right. One fortunate part of this fiscal year is state money. We're expecting additional rooms and meals that we didn't have before. The state revenue picture is better than it was last year. That's factual data from the New Hampshire Municipal Association and from our own legislators. I don't have what the numbers increase numbers are, but it's a lot better than the other side of the coin. And I think our motor vehicle revenue has been pretty well. So, you know, it's going to be a process that we're going to go through. And it's never easy to have this large of an increase in value. And we work with the Board, we work for the taxpayers and all three of us, and by extension, indirectly Vision. So we work together for the project.

Chairperson Roy then said thank you. Does anybody else have anything? Seeing no further questions she then said, thank you very much. Thank you for coming in.

B. CPCNH Joint Powers Agreement Amendment

Chairperson Roy recognized Craig Putnam of the Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee. Mr. Putnam began by saying Good evening to the Board and to the public. I'm Craig Putnam, and I'm the director member representing Hudson to Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire. I have with me Kate Messner. The two of us form the Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee, and I have two items for tonight, if I may. The first is a proposed amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement, which Hudson has already signed. And then the second item is basically an update on where we're at with the process and expected timeline.

So we'll do the first one, the proposed amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement. So just to brief people, so you recall what we're about, CPCNH is a New Hampshire nonprofit Joint Powers Agency. It was incorporated last fall, and the mission is to foster resilient New Hampshire communities by empowering them to realize their energy goals. And the Hudson Board of Selectmen authorized the town manager to sign the Joint Powers Agreement, and that was executed on November 23 last fall. So what is the CPCNH and what's the JPA or Joint Powers Agreement about? It's basically an intermunicipal contract which includes the CPCNH corporate charter as well as bylaws and the CPCNH at the moment governed by one county and 18 member municipalities through their appointed representatives, myself and Kate, as alternate.

So now to the details of this of this amendment. Most of the JPA articles may be amended by a two thirds majority vote by the members present at any meeting, in particular the CPCNH annual meeting. But Article 16 of the JPA is one of four articles that may only be amended by unanimous consent of the members governing bodies. So all of the municipalities. The original Joint Powers Agreement stipulated that it could itself could only be amended at the annual membership meeting, which takes place in April. The CPCNH is in this very aggressive startup phase right now. And so I'm going to I'm going to skip ahead here for a second on the slides, because what's going on is, is that the Joint Powers Agreement, because it currently reads, can only be amended at the annual meeting that's seen as being somewhat of a potential bottleneck or a roadblock to the rapid growth that CPCNH and wants to achieve. So the particulars of the amendment is to is to remove that, that constraint. So what I have up here at the moment is the actual markup of the amendment. The red line strikethrough and bold Italian underlined is the added language. And effectively what it does is it removes that constraint that the JPA, the Joint Powers Agreement, can only be amended one time a year at that annual meeting. So any proper, properly formed board meeting with a quorum and still abiding by the rest of the constraints on how the JPA may be amended are all still in play.

So it basically it's just saying give the give the ability, the board, the ability to amend it, if needed, at times other than in the April annual meeting. So this was this turned out to be a little bit of a surprise that we had this problem. The bylaws can be amended any time, but the JPA itself could only be amended at the one meeting. And so we just want to reconcile that that conflict, if you will, and get them both so that they can be amended any time. CPCNH's legal counsel has looked at the proposed amendment and they don't have any problem with it. They think it's reasonable. Well drafted. The board itself has unanimously approved this change to the JPA and that happened at the April annual meeting, which was the only time that it could be approved. And now, because it's a change to the Section 16, it must be also approved by all of the member municipalities. So we need to have Hudson sign on and approve this. I believe I'm correct in saying that five out of the 19 have so far approved it. And so this is in process throughout all of the towns I have, if it please. The board has suggested motion. And so I don't know whether you want me to read that or it's in the packet.

Chairperson Roy said yeah, yeah, and I'll, I'll open it up to the Board. If anybody has any questions or comments.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said the coalition. Is that just Hudson or is that throughout the state? Mr. Putnam replied, the coalition consists of 19 municipalities. And if you pardon me for a second, I'll switch to the other presentation in advance. Here's the list of the current members and where they are around the state. Selectman McGrath said so that's an eye chart. But for me, that's wearing, uh, not bifocals, but. Well, we are cheap. They're just, they. They're cheater glasses and they don't work on that and my eyes don't work on that.

Selectman Morin asked, are all the communities listed here doing the same thing you're doing? Mr. Putnam replied, yes, that's what's required. Each one of the communities that's a member of CPCNH has to approve. Selectman Morin then said so they're making a proposal to all their boards of selectmen, councils or whatever. Mr. Putnam replied, exactly. And I believe five so far have approved it and, and it's in process for the rest.

Selectman Guessferd asked, nobody's disapproved then yet? Mr. Putnam replied, No one has disapproved it yet.

Chairperson Roy asked Selectman Gagnon, if he had any questions. He replied, no, Madam Chair, I do not. I support everything Mr. Putnam is doing and looking to accomplish.

Seeing no further questions from the Board <u>Selectman Gagnon made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to approve the amendment to Article XVI, Section 2 of the Joint Powers Agreement of the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire, as presented in the agenda package this evening. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

Mr. Putnam then said, now to the second part. So what I wish to do is basically give you an update on our progress to date in the Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee. And I almost made the mistake there. We have gotten, we the committee, have been a little loose with the E for the second word. And it was officially recognized as Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee. That's what the Board of Selectmen voted to create. And somehow we got a little loose and started calling it energy instead of electric. And so we're trying to be a little more disciplined on that. So forgive me if I if I slip. So again, just to reiterate, CPCNH is a Joint Powers Agency nonprofit, and it's a Governmental Joint Powers Agency. So just recently, in the past nine months since we joined, five additional municipalities have joined the membership. So we're collectively at 19 at the moment, 18 municipalities in one county. And that brings us to approximately 20% of the state's population being represented through CPCNH and there's many more communities that are in the queue and that are interested.

Selectman McGrath spoke up saying, I have a correction for you. The Hudson Board of Selectmen authorized the town administrator as opposed to town manager. Mr. Putnam replied, oh, okay, sorry. And made the correction on the slide he was presenting. Thank you. My display changed here and

we'll go up to an additional community. As of Thursday, Peterborough will be joining CPCNH. Just as a side note, the nature of the CPCNH board and how it's formed will change once we exceed 21 communities. So we're approaching that inflection point. And so after once, once the 22nd community joins, then it's not automatically that every community has a representation on the board. The board has voted on the communities, the communities that represent the board. So back to the chart which we've seen and that we'll get updated as of Thursday when Peterborough joins.

So we've been the Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee has been very active on various CPCNH committees and activities, but the bulk of our work of late has been in drafting the electric aggregation plan for your review coming up I hope quite soon. What we're working on is a late August date for getting that draft to you. And I understand that the Board has working sessions from time to time. Chairperson Roy said occasionally we have we have workshops. Mr. Putnam replied, yeah, we might want to do a workshop. It is a sizeable document. It is presently 72 pages in length. Chairperson Roy responded saying so I would suggest that you start you would coordinate that with Mr. Malizia and just so you're aware we may be fading into budget season at that point. So you might want to reach out to him sooner rather than later and. Mr. Putnam replied, will do. Thank you.

Mr. Putnam went on to say, this is a graphic that is from the electric aggregation plan. And basically it's a timeline that's progressing from left to right. So we have a coalition established this joint power agency that was CPCNH in itself just last fall. Hudson approves the Joint Powers Agreement that happened also last fall, the Board of Selectmen basically directed the had the Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee created, which is a subcommittee of the Sustainability Committee. So that was this item here is done and the electric aggregation plan is in process. And so we're kind of thinking about where we're at in a timeline. We're sort of about here at the moment. This is sort of where we are today. Things that need to happen in the relatively near future is the Committee needs to adopt the plan after some public hearings. So we're in the process of getting educational materials organized and ready to have public sessions to present this. Selectman McGrath then said just a question. Is that supposed to be in our packets? Mr. Putnam replied, that slide that slide should. Selectman McGrath replied, it is not. So that's why I'm asking if it should be. Mr. Putnam then said I thought I had gotten this version of it to you, but I will get this PowerPoint to you so that you can see it

Mr. Putnam went on to say and then at some point and this would be later in the spring when we have the town meeting, then the intent is to have the plan to you folks work with you get the Board of Selectmen so that they're comfortable with the electric aggregation plan so that we can then have a warrant article put together for the residents to vote on in the spring.

Selectman McGrath then said, so I have another question. So if anyone is making a change to their electric billing, I'll state it that way, doesn't that have to be done by August 1st? Because I just made a change. And it was... I was told that they're going up on the is it the service part of your electric bill is going to be doubling in. Selectman Guessferd said supply. Chairperson Roy said the state just approved that. Selectman McGrath then said but I mean don't you...again, you know again this is another eye chart for me, but I thought the electric aggregation plan was part of that, wasn't it? Mr. Putnam replied, no. So. So Eversource goes to market twice a year to purchase power for, for the communities that it represents. So. Hudson, Eversource is the default supplier for Hudson. They go mid-winter and there's about a ten day window when they are basically negotiating contracts for the next six months and then they repeat it again in the summer. And then that that new set of pricing in contracts takes place in late summer through the fall. That's what's happening shortly. August 1st is that new set of contracts that Eversource has purchased for electricity that takes effect starting August 1st. That's entirely separate from the electric aggregation. Selectman McGrath said okay. That's separate from what you're proposing. Mr. Putnam replied, well, what the electric aggregation plan is about is the town voting to not use Eversource as the default supplier any longer. The town itself would contract and partner with... would partner with companies that let contracts for purchasing power for the residential customers of Hudson. And so someone in Hudson would no longer have Eversource as their default supplier. You would still be able to choose to use Eversource if you wished. You would be able to choose to buy power from a competitive electric supplier as you can

now. So none of that changes. What would change is who's the default supplier? It would no longer be Eversource. Eversource would still be responsible for delivery and transmission and billing and manning the customer help line all of the other things that they do they would continue to do. If Hudson votes this in. What changes is one line on your electric bill, which says where did the power come from? Selectman McGrath replied, so similar to the... what I just changed the supplier portion of the bill. Correct. So is that what this is going to be, the supplier portion? Mr. Putnam replied, right, it's the supplier portion, right. And it's similar to what you've done. You, if I'm correct in understanding you chose to use a competitive supplier and not Eversource. Selectman McGrath replied I did. And that and you have to sign sort of a contract and you can choose whether it's 24 months, 48 months, 36 months. It also applies to not just residential properties, but some of the commercial properties as well. Mr. Putnam replied, right. And I want to be careful when we say it's similar because under the Community Power Plan, there's no contract. You can come or go from using what would will become known as Hudson Community Power if this is approved by the voters, you can come or go from that anytime you wish. Basically on a billing boundary, like a monthly boundary. Selectman McGrath then said I just want to if anybody is doing the same or under the same understanding that I have, that that they know about that as opposed to.

Mr. Putnam then said so what what needs to happen and is part of the planning going forward. Go to the next slide here is that there will be education sessions that we will hold so that people understand what's what's being proposed so that they're understanding what it would be that they're voting for or against with the warrant article in the spring. And the whole idea is, is that we can do better than Eversource. We can buy power at a lower price than Eversource. And this has been this is not new. It's new in New Hampshire to be able to do this. But communities around the country have been doing this for decades.

Selectman McGrath then said I just wanted to because I just made the change. I wanted to make sure that if someone else does the same that they need to know about that. Mr. Putnam replied, sure. And. This is part of the education process that we will go through. Selectman McGrath replied, you know, and it's great. It's just that there's other changes that they can make as well. Mr. Putnam replied, sure. And they can. And nothing prevents people from making those changes now. They could go to a competitive supplier now and then later on when that contract is over, they could switch to Hudson Community Power or back to Eversource. Selectman McGrath replied, Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Putnam then said so I apologize that these slides weren't in your packet. I want to stress that there's a couple of things that are... that are going on a little bit in parallel with the work that we're doing here. Let's so we're on the slide here. And this assumes that we're past the town meeting in spring, that it has been approved by the voters. So, Hudson Community Power has been approved. At that point, next spring, there'd be a startup activities for Hudson Community Power. And one of the things that needs to also happen in somewhat in parallel with all of that is the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission needs to adopt rules. Actually, that's happening right now, and those rules are finally being finalized. Expected finalization of those is in August. So this is actually a not next spring activity. This is this is happening sooner, which is great. And the New Hampshire PUC also needs to approve the electric aggregation plan that Hudson has written. And that is kind of dependent on the PUC having finalized its rules, which has been holding up the show for a number of communities here for a while with their. And then key is and I don't want to get into the details of this because it would take far too long for tonight. But the Select Board will at some point, if this is approved by the voters need to adopt some cost sharing agreements and risk management policies because the Town basically is going to be working with an external, let's call it, a broker to purchase power for the residents that are on that are on the new plan, the Hudson Community Power Plan.

And now this is even further down the process. But at some point we need to get data from the utilities, from Eversource in our case and start procuring power. More public outreach and then converting, basically converting people over to the Hudson Community Power and away from Eversource. And so there's all sorts of education that needs to take place as part of all of that process. But this is, this is well down the road from, from where we are now. And so we're looking at eventually, you know, the program launch. And I would hazard a guess that it's at the earliest it would

be fall of 2023 that we'd be looking at launching this. Because if we have the warrant article approved in the spring, I think the earliest that we could actually be stood up and running and ready to go would be in the fall. And there's a couple of windows each year, both spring and fall, when it's sort of an optimal time to start up a community power program. And that has to do to some extent with what does Eversource go to go to market as well. But those would be professionals that are making those decisions, not people here. Okay.

Mr. Putnam then said so just to summarize quickly, what we've been doing is editing and reviewing drafts of the electric aggregation plan that's going on now with the intent of bringing a draft of the plan to the Board of Selectmen by, I'm hoping, late August. We have been and will continue to be talking to candidate power provider organizations, making absolutely no commitments at this point, obviously, and doing due diligence. And we'll continue to do that in anticipation of the warrant article passing next spring, we'll be working with the Board of Selectmen through the fall and understanding that we're overlapping with budget season to get to the electric aggregation plan to the point of where the Board is happy with it. And then at that point we would go forward with putting it to the PUC that could actually be done ahead of the voters approving the warrant article because they both have to happen in order for anything to go live. We'll be developing materials for educating the Hudson voters through the fall. We started this past spring. We'll be continuing to work on that through the fall. I believe that we need to go back and believe we need to have the warrant article formed by early November. Am I correct in that if it's Board sponsored? Yes? Okay. Some public education sessions through the fall and winter at some point in the probably in the spring. That could happen prior to the town meeting. But it could happen after there's it could work either way. Would recommend come back to the Board with recommendations on who we think the town might want to partner with for a provider organization. And then assuming that the electric aggregation plan is approved by the Hudson voters, we'd work with the Board to partner with the selected power provider organization and then eventually execute on standing up Hudson Community Power. There's a lot of detail there. And I apologize that you didn't have all the slides ahead of time. Chairperson Roy replied, that's okay. Does anybody have any anything else? Any questions?

Selectman McGrath said I'll just offer my packet to you so that you can see what we got. Chairperson Roy asked, Selectman Gagnon, do you have any questions or comments? Selectman Gagnon said the only comment I'll make is just a reminder to the public who's listening to this very technical conversation. This is something the town facilities have done for years. And I think Mr. Putnam and Ms. Messner here are trying to do the same thing for the residents. So it's nothing super new, but hopefully it'll be justice to our residents and small business as it is to town facilities. Thank you. That's all. Chairperson Roy said, I just want to say thank you for all your work. And this is a lot of work and I appreciate. Mr. Putnam replied, it's a labor of love. Working towards is lower electric rates.

C. Comcast Franchise Agreement Renewal Recommendation

Chairperson Roy recognized Hudson Cable Committee member, Diane Cannava who was filling in for Cable Coordinator, Jim McIntosh. Ms. Cannava began by saying, how do you Board members? I am Diane Cannava. I'm the clerk on the HCTV Cable Utility Committee. And I think I drew the short straw tonight. Everybody seems to be out of town and I'm not. So bear with me, please. It is my pleasure to be here. You have, I believe already it has been submitted the renewal agreement between the Town and Comcast. And it did come with a cover letter from Jim McIntosh, Media Director and Mike O'Keefe, who is the Chairman. So I'd just like to highlight some points of that letter and then give you a chance to ask any questions.

The current cable television agreement between the Town and Comcast expired in March of 2022, but does remain in effect. The now proposed renewal agreement was negotiated by Mike O'Keefe,

the Chairman of the Hudson Cable Utility Committee, Jim McIntosh, HCTV Media Director, and Steve, Malizia. Town Administrator, with Comcast senior manager Brian Christiansen. As part of the renewal process, the Cable Utility Committee held a public hearing on July 11, 2022. The committee members reviewed the proposed agreement and offered some changes that were incorporated into the final document. Substantive portions of the current agreement remained unchanged. Some modifications were made to the renewal agreement that included HCTV to acquire a fourth television access channel, which will support high definition programming. The franchise fee Comcast pays to the Town increased from 4% to 5%, and this is the highest limit allowed by law. There will be, this will be for the renewal of this term of this agreement for ten years. It will be paid to the town quarterly, 80% for the Community Utility Committee, and 20% goes into the Town. There were a lot of outdated sections, as you can imagine, and technical references that were removed and updated from the document. And also certain language was updated to reflect the current law and FCC rulings, but not part of this franchise agreement. Comcast did agree to offer qualifying senior citizens a discount on their monthly bill. All parties involved in this negotiation process believe that the proposed renewal represents a fair agreement, and they recommend that the Board of Selectmen, as a franchise authority, approve and sign this non-exclusive franchise agreement with Comcast. So I open it up to any questions with my liaison to the Committee, Bob Guessferd. He can help me out if there's anything technical I don't get.

Selectman McGrath was recognized and said I have a question. You mentioned, Diane, that senior citizens were able to get a discount. Can you tell me the process that they would have to go through to get that that discount and the age limit? Ms. Cannava replied, I have a letter here. Selectman Guessferd said the letters in the packet. It's the third page, says Xfinity. Selectman McGrath said oh, so that's the one from Brian Christiansen. Ms. Cannava replied, yes. Selectman McGrath then said so it's \$2 per month. And they have to be 65 or older. Should I read this letter into the record for people that are watching this and don't? Chairperson Roy said, if you like. Selectman McGrath said, I think I think we should. Ms. Cannava said I can do that.

"Discount available to eligible Hudson senior citizens. Comcast will voluntarily offer a discount equal to \$2 per month off Digital Extra. The discount will be for those persons age 65 or older who are head of household and receiving SSI or Medicaid. A qualifying subscriber must be able to show proof of such qualifications. Acceptable documentation would be the following proof of age: driver's License, birth certificate or passport. Head of Household: lease deed, town Tax Bill. Receiving SSI or Medicaid benefits under Social Security."

Selectman McGrath then said so is that...is it just Medicaid or Medicare that they would? Chairperson Roy said this just says Medicaid under Social Security? Selectman McGrath replied, no, it does. But I mean, I mean, wouldn't they want to offer it to Medicare people that are receiving Medicare? Chairperson Roy said because to be honest, I don't know what's the difference between them. Selectman McGrath replied, well, Medicaid is a it's for insurance purposes for health care. And so isn't Medicare. Chairperson Roy replied, right. But isn't one for 65 and older or that qualify for Social Security? And the other one is...Selectman McGrath replied, I don't know. School Board Chairman Gasdia replied, Medicaid is for if you have a certain income level. So Medicare, anyone can get. You can make... you can have \$1,000,000 in your bank account and still get Medicare. But Medicaid, you have to have certain qualifications. So if you qualify for that, you'll meet whatever income requirements that Comcast has.

Ms. Cannava added, I believe this reflects what they do with other towns, the exact same qualifications. Selectman McGrath replied, that doesn't make it right. Ms. Cannava replied, no, it doesn't. But I'm glad we found out about it. Chairperson Roy then said, I think just to be clear, under Medicaid, you would automatically meet whatever income threshold Comcast has put in for that discount. If you're if you're receiving Medicaid. If you're receiving Medicare, that's not necessarily so. You could you could have other income. Selectman McGrath replied, I just you know, it should be if it's available to senior citizens, it doesn't matter what kind of income. This is my thought that it shouldn't be limited to just people that are receiving Medicaid. Chairperson Roy replied, I don't know that I disagree with you, but it's a private Comcast is a private company, so they can make whatever

rules they want. Selectman McGrath replied, yeah, I know that. But what's so what's you know, I used to say to people at the Planning Board level, you can do something, but it doesn't make it the right thing to do. And that's this it's not necessarily the right thing, but they have the right to do it. So that's my point. Selectman Guessferd said it's a good point. Selectman McGrath replied, I think so.

Seeing no further questions from the Board, <u>Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to approve the nonexclusive Comcast Franchise Renewal Agreement dated July 26, 2022. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 4-1. Selectman McGrath opposed. Selectman McGrath then said I'm just going to comment, my reason for my nay vote was based on my comments.</u>

D. Lowell Road Bridge Project - Amendment #2 - DES Permit Fees

Chairperson Roy recognized Town Engineer Elvis Dhima. Mr. Dhima said, good evening Chairperson and members of the Board. I'm here before you this evening Thank you, Chairperson Roy. Good evening, everyone. As you recall about a meeting or two meetings ago, I was in front of you asking you for an amendment number one on this related to engineering services. related to the dredge and fill permit for Lowell Road lining. That particular bridge Lowell Road is on the red list. Long story short, when you submit a dredge and fill, we have two things to look at. Mitigation that they're required related to the wetland. And the other piece is the fee related with this permit. Talking to the state, going back and forth on them, we agree that there's no mitigation required oat this project. And the other piece was the fee. We tried really hard to have them waive the fee because this is basically a town project. We waive our own fees for our own projects, but it appears that do not have a process in place for that and they have never done before try to explain to them this is ARPA funds, it's related to infrastructure. And long story short, we tried and the fee still stays in place. So that said, I'm in front of you tonight to ask you for an amount not to exceed \$1500. We budgeted \$50,000 for the engineering phase. And we are right now with the approval of this amount at \$42,200. And hopefully this is the last surprise because I remember you. Selectman Guessferd, asking me last time, is this the end of it? And I think I said yes, what state is that keeps on giving. So hopefully this is it. That said, we're still under budget and we've done a lot of homework. We're ready to file and this is the only thing that's waiting for the completion of the permit phase. But that said, I'll take any questions you might have.

Selectman McGrath asked so this is just for dredging and filling? Mr. Dhima replied, correct. So this is basically the state saying, yes, you can do the work, upstream and downstream related to this brook. And thank you for the fee. Selectman McGrath said, it's surprising to me that the fee is as low as it is. You would expect it to be much higher. Mr. Dhima said, it has been in the past. And we'll talk about the next item to a little bit, how that comes into play. But basically what they're charging is about \$0.40 per square foot of a permanent wetland that they believe is permanent. We believe it's temporary, but that's for another day.

Chairperson Roy asked, Selectman Gagnon if he had any questions. He replied, not at this time. Thank you for asking. Chairperson Roy then said so I just want to be clear. This is this is part of the ARPA money. Mr. Dhima replied, 100%. You're correct. Chairperson Roy said I just want to make that clear to the listening audience. Does anybody have anything else? <u>Selectman McGrath made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to approve amendment number two to the Lowell Road Bridge project related to permit fees in the amount of, not to exceed \$1,500, which brings the total contract amount to \$42,220 using account #7201, which is our ARPA funding. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

E. Merrill Park Proposed Parking Area & Repair of Existing Boat Ramp

Chairperson Roy again recognized Town Engineer Elvis Dhima. Mr. Dhima also introduced Bill Collins, Chairman of the Hudson Conservation Commission. Mr. Dhima began by saying So with that said, as you all know, Merrill Park is a town park and within this park is an existing boat ramp that's primary use for kayak access and primary access for the Fire Department at this time. It's in need of repair. You need preservation because right now there's some significant issues out there. In addition to that, there's some other improvements that Conservation Commission has taken upon themselves to present to the Board and recommend. And one of them is introduction of an eight vehicle parking area adjacent to this boat ramp/kayak access. With that said, we have had multiple discussions back and forth how to tackle it because this is not going to be an easy one. So with that said, what we're trying to do, what we're trying to propose to the Board of Selectmen is the same approach we did with our Musquash parking area, which is the Engineering Department doing this in-house to keep the costs low and doing this at our time when we can. Get the permit that we need for this, which is going to require a Shoreland Protection. Figure out what that permit will be, what it will take, come up with something that the state and us can work with and come up with a boat that's approximately ten feet wide that will be accessible to everyone, residential, better access for the Fire Department and their equipment to get into it and see where it takes us. And with that said, Mr. Collins is here to take any questions with me and answer as many questions we have.

Chairperson Roy asked does anybody have any questions. Selectman Gagnon replied, I do, Madam Chair. And quickly. Forgive me, gentleman. There was some discussion on the books about Hudson Logistics Center sometimes or potentially paying for some of this work. Just briefly, can you explain if there is any tie in still how you're anticipating that tie in or not anticipating it with what you're currently proposing? Mr. Dhima replied, I just want to be clear, this will be 100% related to the existing boat ramp, that's more like a kayak and for small boats. The boat ramp you're referring to, Selectman Gagnon, is state of the art boat ramp that will be utilized in a different location than the existing one. And funds related to that project, if it ever comes back, will be focused on a different brand new boat ramp that will be heavy duty motorized vehicles, not this particular boat ramp that we're focusing on. Does that does that answer your question? Selectman Gagnon replied, yes, I believe so. Thank you. Mr. Dhima replied, Sir. You got it.

Chairperson Roy said, I do have a question. Is there digging involved in this project? Mr. Dhima said or asbestos? Mr. Collins replied, right. So we're looking to put a small parking area in there to open it up a little bit. For people to come and go make it more accessible. Means more people using it means less vandalism happening at the park. So there's a possibility of some stump removal, but most of the grades will be brought up to grade. Not dug down to grade. Mr. Dhima then said so to answer your questions, there will be possible digging, yes. Related to the stamp removal. With that said, myself and the Civil Engineer are both certified to handle certain levels of asbestos inspection on the site or identifying that if it's there. So when we get to that phase, which is a construction piece, one of the staff from Engineering Department will be there to assess if that's the case or not. We do not believe overall, the information that's provided, that there is asbestos at the area that we're planning to utilize. As Mr. Collins said, our approach is to not take any chances and build up this parking area and I'll go down. But there will be some minor cuts and fills there, especially when it comes to the boat ramp itself.

Chairperson Roy said, so, I mean, I just want to be clear, I'm not opposed to a project, but I don't want us to have liability. Right. Or large unanticipated costs because we have to do an abatement project. Right? Mr. Dhima replied, absolutely. And right now, the only phase we're committed to this point right now is the design, the approach and the permit. If we can't get that far, then obviously there's no discussion whatsoever required for the construction phase because we don't know what the state is going to come back to, especially what we will be dealing with. But my understanding is that if we get those three phases complete, you know, the approach, the permit and the Con Comm covering the cost associated with that, then we'll come back to the Board of Selectmen and have a

discussion about what the construction will be like and the funding for it. Because right now this is not on the Town. Right now this is a venture that the Conservation Commission is taking upon them to address this need.

Chairperson Roy then said and then my other question then would be, what's the time...what timeline are you looking at? Mr. Dhima replied, when we filed last time for a Shoreland Protection, it was outside of the 150 foot buffer. It was not as complex as this one and it took about somewhere between 3 to 4 months. So we're hoping to have an answer and some kind of direction by the end of this calendar year if we get to work within a week or so. We've also got some big projects coming online, construction projects coming to as well. So this will have to be fit in to our schedule, but I'm hoping we get a positive response from the state by the end of calendar year. That's a goal. We'll get that done. We can regroup, figure out what the next move is. And in the spring of 2023, we can figure out what we're going to undertake once we figure out what the funding is.

Chairperson Roy asked, anybody else have anything? Selectman Gagnon said I do, Madam Chair. Gentlemen, one last question for you. I know I think we've been aware of some vandalism, some deforestation, I guess, as you will in that area. You may have said it already on Mr. Dhima, but do you have any general plans that you can explain to us where you may try to help protect the bank of the river from wash away due to any current or previous destruction of removal of trees or shrubs and that kind of thing on the bank. Mr. Dhima replied, so there's two, there's two parts to your question. The erosion that that has to do more with what's going on with the river activity over there and something beyond our control. We know that the river bank did not look like that 20 years ago. That's my understanding on people that have been here longer than I have. One thing we're trying to do is we're going to introduce boulders along the drop, the riverbank there. So if anyone is venturing around there with a vehicle, they'll have some kind of stop mechanism to it short of a quardrail. But as far as the as far as the trees being out there illegally or without any without us knowing about it, that's something that we're going to keep an eye on. And we're hoping if this project moves forward, then there's a lot of activity out there by public that that vandalism will actually go away because this spot will be visited more often by everyone. Who knows, maybe even I can hit the kayak or there there's a boat ramp I can get access to never know at lunchtime. But it's noted Selectman Gagnon. It's noted.

Mr. Collins added, there were two trees cut down or maybe two and a half trees that were on a small peninsula that kind of jutted out off the side of the bank. And I mean, that's an easy fix with a couple of replanting of trees once we get the project going and that would be part of it. My big concern really is we really haven't seen the erosion along the river's edge because we haven't had a lot of high water. And the construction will be of a nature that will kind of prevent further erosion from happening. It'll be compacted gravel tiered down. And it's in an area that's protected from the currents because the currents flow north to south. This is kind of on an easterly side of the riverbank. We'll call it in a nook along First Brook. So there's definitely a lot less erosion in there. Mr. Dhima then said the answer to that is we'll have to determine based on the permit Shoreland Protection to how many trees we need to put back or how many trees we need to take down. We don't expect to do a lot of that. We're going to try to stay away as far as possible from doing any further cutting, but depending on what the permit will take, typically at times in the past when I was in private sector, they'll ask you to plant new plants because they do a 50 by 50 grid approach to everything you do. So we'll have to see how that plays out. But I, I would not be surprised if they ask us to put some, some plants back in there, so we'll have to figure out where. Chairperson Roy asked, you all set, Mr. Gagnon? Selectman Gagnon replied, thank you. I believe that answered my question. Yes, very much. Thank you, gentlemen.

<u>Selectman McGrath made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to move forward with this project and authorize the Town Engineer to be the principal for this project. A roll call vote was taken.</u>
<u>Carried 5-0.</u>

<u>Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to authorize the Town Engineer to file for the Shoreland Protection permit with NHDES. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

<u>Selectman McGrath made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to authorize the Public Works</u> <u>Director to assist with construction of this project. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

F. Fire Dispatcher Resignation

Chairperson Roy recognized Fire Chief Rob Buxton. Chief Buxton began saying, Good evening, Chairperson Roy, members of the Board. Tonight, I bring forward the notice of resignation from dispatcher Anthony Patti. Dispatcher Patti has been a member of the organization for the last three years. He's leaving to go west and work in the city of Nashua. So he has tendered his resignation effective July 31st, 2022. So I would ask the Board to accept his resignation with thanks and appreciation. Seeing no questions from the Board, <u>Selectman McGrath made a motion</u>, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to accept the letter of resignation from Dispatcher Anthony Patti effective 0800 July 31, 2022 with the Board's thanks and appreciation. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

<u>Selectman McGrath made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to authorize the Fire Chief to</u> advertise the Dispatcher position. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

G. Seagrave Fire Apparatus Contract Amendment

Chairperson Roy again recognized Fire Chief Rob Buxton. Chief Buxton began by saying before you this evening, Chairperson Roy and members of the Board, I provide you a copy of the amended terms of the contract. As you're aware, we had received a request for a surcharge from Seagrave Fire Apparatus in the amount of \$89,165. And you had authorized us to come to terms with them regarding the amendment. And in this document this evening, which has been vetted by David Lefevre, you'll notice that we'll receive credit for any outstanding interest that has been received since the truck has been pre-paid for. They are extending the limited warranty on the truck from two years to three. They are going to provide an in-process inspection in the month of September. And if the truck is not on site prior to the end of October, which is the drop dead date to remove truck 36 and service, they will provide us with a loaner and at their own cost. So those are the terms that we bring forward to you this evening. And I'm asking for authorization to sign the document and move it forward.

Chairperson Roy asked, does anybody have any questions? Selectman McGrath then said so, so any support that I offered for this, I'm changing that. I've heard from the Finance Director and I understand that, Steve, Malizia doesn't approve of using ARPA funds. The ARPA Funds Committee didn't vote on this, as I understand it. The money is supposed to be used for infrastructure and not trucks and capital reserves should be used for this. So I'm taking my vote of approval away and the others can do what they wish. But I'm not supporting that.

Chairperson Roy then asked, does anybody else have anything? Selectman Gagnon said, Selectman McGrath, can you explain your thoughts a little more? I mean, the vote currently is just to talk about the contracts. I'm interested in your thoughts there, but is it right to do it in this motion or is there another motion or another discussion we should have about what you're speaking of?

Selectman McGrath replied, I don't know that. But I do know that I've been told since the last meeting that I talked to the Finance Director. I talked to her today, and she doesn't support this at all. She was on the Committee and the, ARPA Committee and they didn't approve this. And they should they should have been presented with that because you're asking to use ARPA funds. And \$2.6 million of

the ARPA funds that were given or donated to the Town, two point million is committed. So there's money there's a little money left. But that's supposed to be used for infrastructure, not for trucks. And the capital reserve account, which I understand has, has money in it in your account. And that should be used as opposed to this. So that's my reason. Steve Malizia's on vacation this week. I can't talk to him, but it's my understanding that he didn't approve that either.

Selectman Gagnon replied, thank you for that explanation. Chief? Can you speak to that a little bit too kind of add some clarity to what she's talking about, please? Chief Buxton replied, sure. Absolutely. The original ARPA group sent you four projects. The expenditure, any additional expenditures, no different than the pavement for the transfer station, are in the authorization area of the Board of Selectmen and there is no need to go back to the ARPA group. There is no capital reserve money available for this project. The capital reserve money that is available is for repair and refurbishment and is not for purchasing. There is a capital reserve account for purchasing, which is a vote of the public which would not take place until next March. So that does not make itself available for this project as we see fit. See here today in front of you. And to the comment about the Town Administrator, he was in support of this prior to his leaving for vacation with no issues. So he worked with me and Dave Lefevre on this. So that's those are the comments that I have. Selectman Gagnon replied, thank you very much, sir.

Selectman Guessferd was recognized and said do we do we think that this would have been brought up by our attorney or anybody else? I mean, I want to make sure we're not going to officially violate anything. Chief Buxton replied, no. So I went to a company called Guidehouse, which is the state contractor for ARPA money, as I expressed during our last meeting, and asked if this would be an expense that would be authorized, and they said yes, that it would be authorized.

Selectman McGrath then said but it wasn't presented to the ARPA committee. Chief Buxton replied, it was not sent to the ARPA Committee, no. Selectman McGrath then said when did the ARPA.... you (Chairperson Roy) were on the ARPA Committee. Chairperson Roy replied, I was not. Selectman Gagnon and Selectman Morin were. Selectman McGrath then said and you're the liaison to the Fire Department, correct? Chairperson Roy replied, I am. Selectman McGrath then said so this the contract that we signed with the truck manufacturer, when was that signed? Chief Buxton replied, that would have been signed in 2020. Selectman McGrath then said so you could have easily gone to the ARPA Committee. Chief Buxton replied, the request for the surcharge came in two weeks ago. Chairperson Roy replied, yeah, we had at our last meeting. Selectman Guessferd added a little over two weeks ago. Chief Buxton replied, so we didn't... the surcharge was not part of the original contract. That's why we're amending the contract.

Selectman McGrath asked so where were the funds coming for the truck originally? Chief Buxton replied, the funds for the truck was the lease purchase that was authorized by the board and is part of the budget and the default budget. Selectman McGrath replied, said so it's part of the budget. So this this increase could have been part of the budget, too. Chairperson Roy replied, but we didn't know about it. Selectman McGrath replied, no, but now we know about you're using ARPA funds. Chairperson Roy replied, right. But when we signed the contract, we didn't know that they were going to come to us no later....Selectman McGrath interrupted saying I understand that part of it. But there's money within the budget you could use. I think that there's money in the budget. Chairperson Roy replied, we're in a second default budget. To which Selectman McGrath replied, I understand. I understand that but it's too bad that Steve's not here.

Chief Buxton then said we presented three options. The last time that we had conversation on this one was to use contingency money, which Steve and I had recommended you not do this early into the budget season. Number two was to basically authorize the over expenditure of earned time buyback funds, which we also chose not to look at. And we said we weren't looking to go there. And the third option was to look at utilizing the ARPA funds, which the Guidehouse gave us the green light, that that would be an appropriate utilization of the funds. Selectman McGrath then said so couldn't you have gone back to the ARPA Committee and asked them to amend their whatever vote

they had. Chief Buxton replied, that was that was not the direction the Board gave me when we talked about this the first time.

Selectman Morin was recognized and asked, are we in any time restraint with this new amendment to the contract? I owe this to them forthwith. Chairperson Roy asked does anybody else have any questions on this. Seeing no further questions, <u>Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Gagnon to authorize the Fire Chief to sign the amendment to order terms with Seagrave Fire Apparatus for the purchase of one unit of Seagrave Custom Fire Apparatus, for model TB50CA Marauder II Pumper number SO7L25. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 4-1. Selectman McGrath opposed.</u>

Selectman Gagnon made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to authorize the Fire Chief to use American Rescue Plan funds not to exceed \$77,165 for the payment of the agreed upon amendment with Seagrave Fire Apparatus. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 4-1. Selectman McGrath opposed.

9. Board Liaison Reports

<u>Selectman Guessferd</u>: The only thing, as we saw the big work of the community of the Cable Commission was the contract. So I think that was a great move forward. That contract had kind of lapsed, so I'm glad we were able to get that done tonight.

With regard to Rec, summer program is halfway over. Everything's going well, all kinds of good activities going on. Anybody looking to sign up for soccer? Soccer signups are closed, but there is a waiting list and we need officials so anybody can officiate soccer, go into the Rec Department and put in an application.

summer programs for men's and women's softball are going well and heading toward the playoffs and senior center is things are going along there there's some pretty good activities for the seniors going on there. There's a few field trips and everything is going well there so on those.

Regarding the Planning Board, we've had a couple of projects approved in the last meeting. Tomorrow night we'll be looking at the final phases of Shepherds Hill, which has had kind of a complicated past, so that that will be on the agenda for tomorrow night, an application, acceptance and review. That's all I got.

<u>Selectman McGrath</u>: I just have a couple of things. I talked to Chief Dionne and they've received quotes for the addition to the police station. They're currently going to be reviewing those and probably have a report back to us for either the next meeting or the meeting after.

Municipal utilities committee didn't meet this this current week or two weeks and they had a lack of a quorum. So and that's understandable because we don't have a full, full board. And that's all I have.

Selectman Morin: Benson's Committee; they're moving forward with getting estimates to remove the asbestos out of there and then move on with plans, whatever they're going to do with that building. Chairperson Roy asked, is that the train station? Selectman Morin replied, yes, the train station. So they're going to be coming forward to this Board, actually with the three things I'm going to talk about. Second thing is the mural in the gorilla cage is starting to chip and flake. So they've got a local artist that has offered to repaint it if the Committee picks up the supplies. So they're going to get \$200 bucks out of their budget and get that done. The park fees, they pretty much come to a conclusion and that will be presented when they come to the Board. They'll be coming to the Board after they get the quote for the asbestos so they can just do everything in one shot.

The Benson's barn. Town Engineer had put a submission into the state preservation group to just put temporary siding on the barn to make it look better to go with the roof. They turned us down. Said that we cannot do that because it will take away from the barn and the historic. So at this point, we're going to stay the way we're at. There's another option they're looking at some type of board that they can put on there. He's going to submit that, see where that comes back and take it from there. Other than that, we're going to have to reside it with which is going to be a lot of money.

The other thing is right now, the Town's under a watering advisory on even days, but we've kind of run into a real big problem with some issues. First issue is in the morning they're coming into finding the main tank on Gordon Street is down to 30% because people are watering. Second issue is there's a pump in Nashua that is down. So we've only got one pump pumping water into Nashua from us and they can't find parts. So we're not getting the normal amount of water we do daily from Nashua, which is limiting our supply. And the third thing is we the cold bane situation, we lost one of our wells. So we're getting into a dire straits here, especially with the severe drought that they just issued in the hot weather and no rain. And at some point, we're probably if things don't change, we're going to have to make this a mandatory water thing instead of instead of advisory. So we just like to get that out to the public, you know, start using water conservation help any way we can because we're getting into bad straits and.

Chairperson Roy asked, maybe get an update on that on the next meeting. Selectman Morin replied, yes.

<u>Selectman Gagnon</u>: Thank you, Madam Chair. A few quick ones tonight. The Sustainability Committee. Well, you heard a lot from them tonight, or at least their subcommittee about power aggregation.

NRPC haven't joined any meetings as of late. But they do have the continuing application process for the ten year plan, which is still open until, I want to believe, beginning to mid-August.

The Chamber of Commerce for everyone out there, just keep an eye on their calendar online. Lots of events they post both in the chamber and with the community as a whole. They do have a Board of Directors meeting on August 16th to be aware of, and that's all I have for you, Madam Chair.

<u>Chairperson Roy</u>: Thank you. And I just have a couple of things. The Town Planner is provide an update on surveys. So we started doing surveys pre-COVID to update the master plan and that kind of obviously came to a halt with the pandemic. So at this point, the NRPC plans to open up follow up surveys by July 29th and run it through August 15th. And they want to have the results of those published by August 22nd. And then in-person and virtual sessions will be scheduled in the September/October time frame, and the draft chapters that have been under are available for review and possibly revised or in the additional outreach and adoption by the Planning Board towards the end of the calendar year. So that's the Planning Board.

And then the only thing I have for the Library is I think I've mentioned the last couple of meetings is National Night Out is August 2nd, they're expanding it. If you watch working together for Hudson, the Library Director goes into detail about what events will be there and the fun that can be had at National Night Out.

11. Remarks by School Board

Chairperson Roy recognized School Board Chairman Gary Gasdia. Mr. Gasdia said, just a brief update for you tonight. Not too much. This is probably the lull of the school season. Summer Scholars is ending. I will say the partnership between the new Superintendent and the Town is already beginning. He's had a couple of meetings with Chief Dionne and I believe Chief Buxton. So that's nice to hear. I will just make a plea. I know you're trying to get people for officials, but we need help with pretty much any position you can imagine. Teachers, school nurses, custodians, lunch monitors, you name it, we need it. You know, we're putting things in place so the kids will get the education. But class sizes at the high school may be a little bit bigger. We're going to probably have to ask some teachers to cover some extra classes because we are way down. So if anybody knows anybody that's qualified to be a substitute or wants to be a teacher and wants to help out in Hudson, go to our website, sau81.org and there is a list of jobs you can apply for. So that's it.

Selectman McGrath asked, is there a reason for that? Mr. Gasida replied, well, there's a few. I mean, I'll try not to get too high on my soapbox, but in general, teachers and educators, that whole industry, like a lot of industries, saw a great resignation. And, you know, if I'm being honest, you can make a lot more money and a lot of other towns. And, you know, we need to find a way to be more competitive. And right now, we do okay. And the teachers that are here are phenomenal. But when they leave, it makes it tough to attract new folks because everyone else also has shortages. I believe Nashua has something like 350 openings. And so they have more openings than us and they pay more. So it makes it that much more difficult for us. So it likely has, I would think, something to do with the pandemic when people were able to work from home. Is that part of the reasoning where. I think there's I think there's a lot, to be honest. I think, you know, in general, the number of people going to become teachers nationally is going down. A lot of colleges that are actually reducing or eliminating their teaching programs because enrollments down that pipeline comes through. And I think there's. There's a lot that we've asked our teachers to do that goes beyond teaching. And to do that at the salaries, they're asking that this is not something this is just nationally. And so the pool is there. But, you know, hiring is difficult in every industry right now. And so when you then add that to an area that doesn't get paid much, it just sort of gets, you know, compensated, you know, compounded. That's the word I'm looking for. So it's not a Hudson problem, but for us, it's a Hudson problem. So, you know, but we do have a lot of people, again, you know, to the people that are that are on our staff, they're phenomenal. They will do everything. I don't think the kids will notice it. They'll work more. They'll do all those things. But it's not optimal. So if we happen to know anybody, send them our way.

Selectman McGrath replied that's, uh, it's sad to hear that. I mean, it's. Mr. Gasdia replied it is. Selectman McGrath went on to say you know, from a perspective of, you know, I remember going to school and some of the teachers I thought were great, some of them not so much, but. But society was different than to. You didn't. You didn't have a lot of. Interaction between, you know, you could go to the school meetings, you could have parent teacher night. My mother always went to those, but I don't know now if there's too much involvement or not enough. I just. It's actually. It's it's sad. I mean, I just I find I don't have children, as I keep saying that when we're talking about the school. But I know my nephews went to the Hudson schools. I went to the Hudson schools and am I my family members that live in Hudson? And I just find it I find that to be a sad commentary that we're losing teachers and we're in need of them. And it's not fair. It's that loss and the extra work that's required for the ones that stay. It's not fair to them because then they have to pick up more and maybe they may have issues that they need to attend to when they get home. And it's just it's a sad, sad commentary.

Mr. Gasdia replied, yeah. No, it's tough. And like you said, society is society has changed. And, you know, there are a lot of things we have to do in school now that I wish we didn't have to do. That falls on the teachers, right? Whether it's student safety, whether it's dealing with mental health issues, whether it's dealing with socioeconomic issues. You know, family structures are very different. Family support, yes. We have a lot of parents that because of technology, can stay in constant contact with teachers. But we have a lot of families, unfortunately, or that support isn't there at all and it all falls to

the teacher. So it's a very difficult job. And I think all the ones that that do it and hope there are many more out there that want to come do it in Hudson.

Selectman McGrath replied, right. Well, that so I'm not going to take up a lot of time on this soapbox, but but the pendulum swings. And so, you know, at some point it's going to go back the other way and there's going to be a, you know, an increase in people wanting to be teachers because. Well, I mean, it's it's changed over the years. You know, we didn't have a lot of teachers when I went to school. You know, it was of course, the population was smaller and but it changes and it's involvement in government. Now, we have a pendulum that swung one way where there was a lack of people being interested in attending government or being participatory in government. And now it's swung Green Meadow Golf Course that caused an influx of people that really want to attend. And that's a good thing. But it's going to at some point, it'll swing back again the other way. So it's just it's the times that we're living in. And sadly, it's it's affecting the schools.

Mr. Gasdia then said and again, it's not just teachers pretty much go right down the line, right? So our custodians are working extremely hard because they're short staffed. Our nurses are working hard because they're short staffed, you know, literally go right down the line pretty much every position. But the teachers, of course, are the ones that are front and center that everybody thinks about. So that's it for my cheery update.

12. Other Business/Remarks by the Selectmen

Selectman Guessferd: I'm all set.

Selectman McGrath: I don't have anything more.

<u>Selectman Gagnon</u>: Yes, ma'am. Thank you very much. I want to thank my fellow selectman for allowing me to or have the courtesy of allowing me to remote in. I do really appreciate that. And one slight public announcement, it is my daughter's fourth birthday today. I want to send a shout out to Zoey for her fourth birthday. And that's all I have.

Selectman Morin: Nothing else tonight.

<u>Chairperson Roy</u>: Happy birthday, Zoey. The only thing I have is this board was scheduled for a visioning session on August 2nd. We've had to postpone that. The facilitator for that had a scheduling conflict. So when the new date is established, we'll obviously let everybody no. We can all go to National Night Out.

13. Nonpublic Session

Motion by Selectman Guessferd at 9:08 p.m., seconded by Selectman McGrath to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A: 3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself, unless such person requests an open meeting. This exemption shall extend to any application for assistance or tax abatement or waiver of a fee, fine, or other levy, if based on inability to pay or poverty of the applicant. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

Nonpublic Session was entered at 9:08 p.m. thus ending the televised portion of the meeting. Any votes taken upon entering open session will be listed on the Board's next agenda. The public is asked to leave the room.

Selectman Gagnon, who was participating in the meeting remotely, was accidently disconnected at the beginning of nonpublic session. Therefore he voted to enter nonpublic session, but did not end up participating in the discussion or subsequent votes.
The Board entered open session at 10:13 p.m.
Motions made after nonpublic session
1) Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman McGrath to seal the nonpublic minutes of July 26, 2022. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 3-1, Selectman Morin opposed.
14. ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 10:13 p.m.by Selectman Guessferd seconded by Selectman McGrath. Carried 4-0.
Recorded by HCTV and transcribed by Jill Laffin, Executive Assistant.
Kara Roy, Chairperson
Bob Guessferd, Vice Chairman
David Morin, Selectman

Marilyn McGrath, Selectman

Brett Gagnon, Selectmen